1954

Kimball Elevator Company, Inc. v. Elevator Supplies Company, Inc. : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

(a) *Preliminary Statement*

Defendant and appellant, Elevator Supplies Company, Inc., has appealed from the judgment on a verdict of \$17,085 entered March 17, 1953, in favor of plaintiff and respondent, Kimball Elevator Company, in the District Court of Salt Lake County, State of Utah. (R. 194, 212).

Plaintiff, the *unsuccessful* bidder on the Hotel Utah passenger elevator modernization project, sued defend-

ant, the *successful* bidder. Plaintiff alleged an express oral agreement whereby defendant was to submit to Utah Hotel Company a "supporting bid" in an amount of \$18,000 or \$19,000 in excess of plaintiff's bid, and that in "violation" of the "agreement" defendant made a *firm bid* and accepted an award of the contract in its own name. (R. 34-41). The "theory" was changed at the trial to "an implied agreement not to compete" with plaintiff, although the subject of competition was never specifically discussed. (R. 632, 651). The trial court rejected the contentions of defendant that there was no consideration for any such purported "agreement", and also held that federal and state statutes interdicting agreements in restraint of trade and competition, are "inapplicable."

Utah Hotel Company on September 27, 1950, awarded to defendant two contracts. One was for modernization of the passenger elevators, in the sum of \$78,774, Exhibit "J"; and the other was for installation of two electric dumb-waiter elevators, Exhibit 4. (R. 243-244, 770-771, 779-782). When plaintiff learned that defendant had been awarded the contracts, plaintiff (whose bids on both projects had been rejected by Utah Hotel Company), demanded that defendant (the successful bidder) pay plaintiff a "commission". (R. 590-591). At the trial, plaintiff's manager admitted that defendant never told plaintiff at any time that defendant would give plaintiff a "cut out of the job" if Utah Hotel Company awarded the contracts to defendant; that defendant's manager did not promise anything; and that there were no

promises. (R. 589-590). Defendant flatly refused to pay anything to plaintiff. (R. 893-895).

Plaintiff then asked Utah Hotel Company, owner of the building, for a "commission", which was refused. (R. 238, 240, 250-251). Plaintiff finally attempted to induce the hotel company to cancel its contract with defendant on the passenger elevators and to issue a contract in the name of plaintiff, which the hotel management refused to do. (R. 239-240).

Of the total verdict, \$8,555 was awarded by the jury for "*Plaintiff's loss of profit in not getting contract with Hotel Utah,*" (R. 194). Plaintiff's only bid on the modernization of the passenger elevators, dated August 16, 1950, Exhibit "I", was incomplete, vague, and said bid was unsatisfactory to Utah Hotel Company. (R. 246-247, 263-264, 787-788, 813-817, 822, 831-832). Plaintiff's bid on two electric dumb-waiters, was also unsatisfactory to the hotel management, Exhibit 20. (R. 792-793). Utah Hotel Company did not see fit to ask plaintiff if it cared to submit another bid. (R. 264). Nor was the hotel company anxious to do business with plaintiff nor to invite plaintiff to submit another bid, as plaintiff had not submitted a satisfactory bid to begin with. (R. 263-264).

Defendant did not solicit this particular business from the hotel company. (R. 242). Plaintiff's bid was never discussed with defendant by the hotel company. (R. 237). Defendant did not do nor say anything to discourage the hotel management from dealing with plain-

tiff. (R. 248). Utah Hotel Company had been a customer of defendant since 1948, Exhibit 3. (R. 243-244, 770-771, 779-782). On August 17, 1950, the management of the hotel expressly requested defendant to submit a *firm bid* on the over-all modernization project; and such request was repeated on August 30, 1950. Such a bid was submitted about September 11, 1950, Exhibit "J". (R. 241-242, 788-792). Said bid was the only one the hotel management ever obtained for doing the job as the hotel wanted it done. (R. 264). The hotel management also requested defendant to submit a firm bid on the dumb-waiter elevators. Exhibit 4 is defendant's bid with the acceptance by Utah Hotel Company. (R. 244).

The balance of the verdict, \$8,530, was awarded for "*Plaintiff's loss of advertisement value*", because plaintiff's name-plates were not installed in the thresholds of the new passenger elevator cabs. (R. 194). There was no evidence that plaintiff could possibly have been awarded a contract, as its bid was unsatisfactory to the offeree; the hotel management refused to entertain it, and did not see fit to invite plaintiff to submit any further bid. (R. 264). Plaintiff was not the manufacturer of any of the equipment involved in the modernization. The subject of name-plates had never been discussed by plaintiff with the hotel management. (R. 586-587, 650), nor was anything mentioned about it in the only bid plaintiff ever submitted on the elevator modernization (Exhibit "I"). Utah Hotel Company as owner of the building refused to allow any name-plates in the elevator cabs, except the name of the cab manufacturer, "Tyler",

in small letters on the capacity plate in each elevator cab. (R. 249, 259-260, 834-835).

(b) *Pleadings, motions and orders.*

Kimball Elevator Company filed suit against defendant October 22, 1951 (R. 1-7). By its amended complaint, plaintiff demanded 10% of the contract price of the passenger elevator modernization contract awarded to defendant by Utah Hotel Company (10% of \$78,774), plus \$50,000 "damages" for "breach" of an alleged express oral agreement. Plaintiff alleged that it procured from defendant a written proposal on a portion of the elevator modernization project in June 1950; that plaintiff then submitted a firm bid to Utah Hotel Company in the sum of \$59,600 on the entire project on August 16, 1950; that plaintiff then obtained a quotation on two electric dumb-waiters, and plaintiff in turn quoted Utah Hotel Company; that defendant then "agreed" with plaintiff to submit to Utah Hotel Company a "supporting bid" on the elevator modernization project in the amount of \$78,000 or \$79,000 (which would be \$18,400 or \$19,400 in excess of the bid presented by the plaintiff); that "in violation of the trust and confidence between the parties and the agreement with plaintiff", instead of a "supporting bid" the defendant made a *firm bid* to Utah Hotel Company and accepted an award of the contract in its own name. (R. 34-41).

Defendant challenged the validity of the complaint and the amended complaint, by motion to dismiss. (R. 42-43). The district court denied defendant's motion to

dismiss, also its alternative motion for a more definite statement, and motions to strike. (R. 44).

By answer defendant expressly denied there was any such agreement or any other agreement between the parties. Defendant alleged there was no consideration for any such agreement, and also that if such an agreement had been made the same would have been illegal and void; that such an agreement would have been designed to stifle competition and to aid plaintiff to monopolize the bidding to the injury and detriment of Utah Hotel Company as owner of the property, and any such agreement would have been against public policy and void. Defendant further alleged that plaintiff knew that Utah Hotel Company desired a bid from defendant; that said hotel company expressly requested defendant to submit a bid on the over-all project; that defendant thereupon submitted to Utah Hotel Company a bona fide bid and defendant was awarded the contract. (R. 45-53).

On motions to strike, the district court struck out the affirmative defense of illegality of the alleged agreement, lack of authority of any agents of defendant to make any such agreement, and also the allegation that Utah Hotel Company as owner of the building did not allow name-plates in the elevator cabs. (R. 54-59).

At pre-trial conferences November 21 and December 2, 1952, there was advanced on behalf of plaintiff the novel "theory" that an *unaccepted offer* may give rise to an "implied agreement not to compete" with the

offeree; and that the claimed "issue" was "that when the plaintiff requested a bid from the defendant, that the defendant agreed to refrain from competitive competition with the plaintiff for the work on which the bid was made, and for the work of the customer for whom the work was to be done." (R. 62). Defendant thereupon again moved to dismiss the amended complaint on the ground that the pre-trial hearing disclosed that plaintiff has no cause of action, and that plaintiff cannot show any legal consideration. (R. 62-63).

The defendant contended that if there had been such an agreement as alleged in the amended complaint, the same would have been illegal and void, as an unlawful agreement in restraint of competition in violation of federal and state criminal statutes. The trial judge ruled that defendant's claim that the alleged agreement would be illegal and void, does not constitute a defense, to which defendant excepted. (R. 62-63).

The various defenses allowed by the pre-trial order as amended, included: (a) Denial that any contract was ever made, inasmuch as the unaccepted offer had expired; (b) that such an agreement would have been collusive and void; (c) that the bid on a portion of the proposed job was obtained by plaintiff from defendant on the false representation that plaintiff would be awarded the contract by Utah Hotel Company; (d) that plaintiff never entered into any agreement with Utah Hotel Company, and that the only bid submitted was incomplete, indefinite and unsatisfactory; (e) that there

was no consideration for any agreement not to compete; and (f) that if the plaintiff's name-plates had been placed in the elevator cabs, the same would have constituted a mislabeling and an unfair trade-practice, since plaintiff was not the manufacturer of any of the equipment. (R. 62-67).

The trial court on January 19, 1953, denied defendant's motion for a summary judgment. (R. 71-79).

On March 2, 1953, following plaintiff's opening statement, the defendant moved to dismiss the case with prejudice. (R. 96). At the conclusion of plaintiff's case in chief, defendant orally moved for a verdict in favor of defendant. (R. 756-757). The trial judge deferred ruling on such motion. (R. 764). At the close of all of the evidence, defendant presented and filed its written motion for a directed verdict against plaintiff, no cause of action. (R. 106-109). Ruling on said motion was deferred until after the verdict. (R. 963).

The court submitted the case to the jury on the theory that there were "exclusive dealings" between the plaintiff and defendant, which the jury might consider in determining whether there was an "implied agreement . . . that the defendant would not compete against the plaintiff." (R. 121). During the trial, however, the court sustained an objection to questions designed to draw admissions from plaintiff that plaintiff did not purchase exclusively from the defendant. The court ruled that whether or not the dealings were exclu-

sive, was wholly immaterial. (R. 501). It was expressly stipulated that defendant did not quote exclusively to plaintiff, and that defendant uniformly allowed a discount of 10% from list price to all elevator companies which purchased from defendant. (R. 858-859). Plaintiff admitted that it purchased from other elevator companies, the same type of materials which defendant manufactures and sells. (R. 505). Plaintiff also admitted that notwithstanding numerous requests from plaintiff for bids on dumb-waiters, plaintiff never at any time purchased any dumb-waiter from defendant, but plaintiff always purchased such equipment from other companies. (R. 503, 874, 948-949, Exhibit 14). Plaintiff's manager also admitted that Kimball Elevator Company at no time issued any purchase order to defendant for synchron control, signal control, nor any other modern elevator controls manufactured by defendant, on which plaintiff had requested bids. (R. 480-482).

Mr. Connole, plaintiff's manager, admitted that defendant never at any time told plaintiff in writing that defendant would give plaintiff an exclusive bid; and when asked whether defendant ever told him orally that defendant would give an exclusive bid, Mr. Connole answered, "Not specifically." (R. 651). He also admitted that defendant did not at any time promise that it would refrain from submitting a bid to any competitor, and that such matter was *never discussed*. (R. 632).

When the court asked counsel for plaintiff if "part of your implied agreement is based on any theory that

the defendant had an agreement that they would deal exclusively with you”, counsel said: “*We do not claim that, your Honor.* We do make the claim they never informed the Kimball Elevator Company they were ever bidding or making quotations to competitors of Kimball Elevator Company.” (R. 846). Mr. Connole, however, admitted that it is not the practice in the elevator field for one elevator company to disclose to another company, to whom it is bidding. (R. 520-521).

The court refused defendant’s requests for instructions whereby the court would construe the written instruments, and the court declined to instruct the jury that there can be no finding of an “implied agreement not to compete with plaintiff” from unaccepted offers and from other past negotiations.

Numerous exceptions to the charge to the jury were taken, and exceptions were also taken to the refusal of the court to instruct as requested. (R. 963-971).

Following entry of verdict and judgment on the verdict (R. 193-194), defendant served and filed its motion to set aside the verdict and to vacate the judgment, and to enter judgment in favor of defendant in accordance with the motion of defendant for a directed verdict of no cause of action, and also a motion for new trial in the alternative, March 24, 1953. (R. 195-200). On June 4, 1953, both motions were denied (R. 202). Notice of appeal was filed on July 2, 1953. (R. 212).

(c) *The evidence.*

Plaintiff, Kimball Elevator Company, is an elevator contractor. It does not manufacture the type of elevator equipment involved in the modernization of the passenger elevators at Hotel Utah. Daniel W. Connole is the manager of plaintiff corporation. Plaintiff has been agent for Kimball Brothers Company, of Council Bluffs, Iowa. (R. 460). About 1945, plaintiff became agent for Murphy Elevator Company, of Louisville, Ky. (R. 301-302, 460). In 1949 plaintiff also became territorial representative of Pacific Elevator and Equipment Company, of San Francisco. (R. 328-329, 460, 688, 701).

Defendant, Elevator Supplies Company, Inc., is an elevator equipment manufacturer. It manufactures elevator controls, signal systems, electric door operators, relay panels, hangers, various elevator accessories, and electric dumb-waiters. Defendant's manufacturing plant is in New Jersey. Roy C. Smith, with office in San Francisco, has been district manager since 1924. (R. 842-843).

Defendant has issued catalogs, from which its materials can be ordered by catalog number. Plaintiff has ordered some repair parts from defendant by catalog number. (R. 415, 461). On jobs of any size, plaintiff has asked for bids. (R. 461). Defendant not only sells elevator equipment on an F.O.B. basis, but throughout the years it has sold materials on contracts to install the equipment. It has been the practice of defendant, which has always been engaged in interstate commerce, to submit bids to everyone who has asked for quotations. (R. 849-

850). As illustrated by Exhibits 34, 36, 39 and 42, when two or more elevator companies requested defendant to give quotations on identical equipment and installation, the bids have been identical. It was admitted by plaintiff that defendant did not quote and sell exclusively to plaintiff. (R. 846, 856-858).

A trade discount of 10% from list price, has always been allowed by defendant on all purchases by elevator companies, whether the sale has been on an F.O.B. basis or on an installed basis. (R. 459, 849-850). The only way such discount can be obtained is to make the purchase. (R. 519). Defendant has sold not only to plaintiff on that basis (R. 438, 459, 519, 743, 850), but defendant has sold on the same discount basis to Murphy Elevator Company, Otis Elevator Company, Montgomery Elevator Company, Pacific Elevator and Equipment Company, Elevator Maintenance Co., Ltd., Elevator Service and Supply Company, and others, as illustrated by Exhibits 5, 6, 8, 31, 32, 33, 39, 40, 43. *Although the plaintiff has made numerous requests for bids, in more than 20 years, the plaintiff has actually awarded to defendant only 7 contracts, and one of them was canceled.* Most of defendant's business has come from other corporations. See Exhibit 46. As to the numerous exhibits offered in evidence over objections of defendant, referred to by Mr. Connole as "business deals" and "contracts," he admitted that the bids were never accepted, no purchase orders ever issued and no contracts materialized. (R. 500).

Prior to February 1948, Hotel Utah had purchased various elevator repair parts from Kimball Elevator Company, but the management became dissatisfied with the service. Commencing February 1948, Utah Hotel Company (owner of Hotel Utah) began to purchase replacement parts and equipment from defendant for rebuilding the existing equipment. Exhibit 3 consists of a number of invoices from defendant to Hotel Utah, with attached letter. The hotel company went directly to defendant to expedite the repair of the equipment. (R. 770-771). Most of the elevator parts deal with door operating equipment. The hotel rebuilt the door closing mechanisms, prior to the time when the Utah Hotel Company decided to undertake the modernization program. The repair of the passenger elevators was carried on in 1948 and 1949. Some of the repair parts were ordered by the hotel by catalog number. (R. 779-782). At the request of Utah Hotel Company, Mr. Roy C. Smith made an investigation of the passenger elevators and reported to Mr. Charles W. Lerch and Associates, elevator consultants employed by the hotel, under date of December 28, 1948, Exhibit 26. (R. 770-777). Roy C. Smith assisted the hotel in the repair program. (R. 877-787).

After Utah Hotel Company began to order equipment from defendant for the repair of the elevators, Mr. Connoles of plaintiff corporation, asked Mr. Roy C. Smith for a "commission". Payment was refused. Mr. Connoles was told that defendant did not pay commissions; that it sold at a discount, and that if plaintiff had

ordered such materials it would have purchased at a discount. (R. 878). Defendant has never paid any commissions.

Otis Elevator Company wrote a letter to Utah Hotel Company on December 1, 1947, Exhibit 25, stating that the existing equipment could not successfully be adapted to modernization. (R. 772). Some months later, in 1948, Mr. Jerry Smith, building superintendent at Hotel Utah, began a series of conferences with Roy C. Smith of defendant corporation, with respect to the kind of modernization program which would be most economical to the hotel. Jerry Smith had been instructed by management to investigate the possibility of bringing up to date all of the passenger elevator equipment. He had been dealing with Roy C. Smith on the repair program and he had confidence in the ability of Roy C. Smith. The hotel had used Elevator Supplies Company equipment satisfactorily for some years. Roy C. Smith pointed out how Elevator Supplies equipment could be used in connection with some existing elevator equipment. Jerry Smith ultimately made recommendations to the hotel management for use of Elevator Supplies equipment in modernization. (R. 782-784).

Jerry Smith discussed modernization of existing equipment with Otis Elevator Company, Elevator Service and Supply Company, Westinghouse, and Kimball Elevator Company. He also asked for recommendations and bids. (R. 784). On May 11, 1950, after Kimball Elevator Company was advised by Jerry Smith that the hotel was

interested in recommendations and bids with respect to modernization, plaintiff sent a letter to defendant, Exhibit HHH: "Please figure out the necessary Elevator Supplies equipment to revamp the three passenger elevators in the Hotel Utah. We would like these figures on an installed basis."

Before submitting any quotation to plaintiff, Roy C. Smith asked Mr. Connole of plaintiff corporation what the bidding procedure would be on the project. Mr. Connole admitted that he told Roy C. Smith that Kimball Elevator Company was going to do the job at Hotel Utah; that he understood that there would be *no other bidder on this job*, and that he told Roy C. Smith that Jerry Smith stated he would not let Otis Elevator Company bid. (R. 523-524; 883). Defendant, through Roy C. Smith, then submitted to plaintiff a bid on a portion of the modernization of the passenger elevators, on an installed basis, Exhibit KKK, dated June 14, 1950, delivered June 30, 1950. (R. 524, 883).

Jerry Smith never told Mr. Connole that Kimball would be awarded the job, nor did he say that Otis would not be allowed to bid. (R. 785). Mr. Max C. Carpenter, manager of Hotel Utah, called to testify by plaintiff, also said that he did not tell Mr. Connole that the Kimball bid would be accepted. (R. 242). Nor did Mr. Carpenter authorize anybody to make such a statement. (R. 242).

Plaintiff obtained a quotation dated July 13, 1950, from Pacific Elevator and Equipment Company, Exhibit

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