1954

Kimball Elevator Company, Inc. v. Elevator Supplies Company, Inc. : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

This is an action between an elevator company and an elevator parts supplier.

The record of facts and circumstances surrounding the issues is rather voluminous due to the long course of dealings between the parties out of which the cause of action arose.

The plaintiff, Kimball Elevator Company, has operated in Utah since 1922, first as an individual or partnership and later as a corporation (R. 228). It maintained a business association with the defendant, Elevator Supplies Company, which may be seen at the Medical Arts Building, Salt Lake City, March 2, 1926, and with the installation of three passenger elevators at Hotel

Utah, Salt Lake City, in 1930 (R. 230). These installations made by the plaintiff company, included a flash-light signal system and night bell furnished by the defendant (R. 230, 269). On the Hotel Utah and the Medical Arts, as on all other elevator projects, the defendant quoted on certain equipment to the plaintiff and the plaintiff installed or performed the elevator work (R. 271).

THE FACTS

Thus, from 1926 the plaintiff did business with the defendant corporation, purchased elevator supplies in the defendant's line of manufacture, and on jobs of any size conferred at the job site with Mr. Roy C. Smith, the defendants area district manager (R. 272).

World War II caused material shortages in many phases of our domestic economy. The elevator business was not excepted. One of the consequences was an attempt by many buildings to keep obsolete or worn machines in sufficient repair to operate until a complete overhaul or "modernization" could be secured and the latest safety features installed.

Elevator "modernizations" are designed to increase speed and safety of operation. The hand lever, controlled by an operator, for starting, speed of movement and stopping, is not seen in a modern type. Instead, the passengers entering the elevator call out their floors. The operator pushes corresponding buttons on the operating panel. As the car rises it stops automatically at each of these floors, the doors opening of themselves as the elevator reaches exactly the level of the floor. On the other hand a person on an upper floor may signal an

approaching elevator. By pressing a button he registers the number of his floor and the car stops automatically without the aid of the operator. The operator has nothing to do but close doors for it is the closing of the doors which releases the starting mechanism and starts the car automatically.

Following the close of the War and the lifting of material restrictions, new construction surged and every major hotel and public service building in the intermountain country considered plans to “modernize” its passenger elevators. The plaintiff and the defendant companies worked together to secure this business. The plaintiff company acted as the original contractor taking responsibility for elevator renovation and the overall job. The defendant company, a *supplier* as its very name designates it to be, furnished and proposed to furnish to the plaintiff certain relay, signal and other electrical equipment. The defendant corporation has never acted as an original contractor until September 27, 1950, when it contracted to repair the elevators at the Hotel Utah, under contract price \$79,274.00, later increased to \$85,554.00 (R. 235-256).

Defendant did not manufacture the master controls which operate the hoisting motors, it furnished relay controls — commonly referred to as the signal system and trade named “synchron control,” “collective — selective,” “duplux selective,” etc. The relay system registered all passenger calls from hall buttons on a relay panel, which transferred or relayed the call to the “controls” which reduce the speed as the elevator entered the zone of the call (R. 274).

A complete job required control equipment beyond the signal systems engineered by the defendant company. Therefore plaintiff purchased the necessary control panel from other elevator companies, such as Murphy Elevator Company, whose representatives were introduced to plaintiff by defendant (R. 276) because the relay control manufactured by defendant worked in conjunction with the control panel manufactured by Murphy Elevator Company (R. 274-275).

In keeping with the arrangement of the three companies, defendant would furnish the signal relay equipment, Murphy Elevator Company the controls, Kimball the elevator work, thereby being able to compete with any company in the field (R. 280), and whereby proposals were made to various and innumerable buildings and firms.

Not only were negotiations made through formal written proposals but also by word of mouth with building management and representatives. Mr. Roy C. Smith, district manager of the Elevator Supplies Company, frequently accompanied Daniel W. Connole, plaintiff's manager, to the job sites and on some occasions talked elevators with the building owners or engineers. Together with Connole, Roy C. Smith visited the Medical Arts Building, Salt Lake City (R. 282-283), and as shown by Exhibit "R", in April of 1946, at the instance of the plaintiff, one of the members of the Board of Directors of the Medical Arts Building while in San Francisco, California, was shown various relay control systems in operation, in which equipment furnished by defendant had been installed (R. 284). As shown by the evidence

presented to the Court and jury (Exh. "Y", R. 294), Roy C. Smith of the defendant conferred with plaintiff in regard to the visit to San Francisco of the member of the board of directors of Medical Arts Building.

At no time did the plaintiff company receive or request quotations on systems competitive to that furnished by the defendant (R. 302-303).

The Synchron System of Elevator Supplies was further explained at Salt Lake City to the board of directors of the Medical Arts Building by Mr. Connole of the respondent company and Mr. Roy C. Smith of the appellant company, both orally and by "cuts" or illustrations (R. 285), as to the efficient manner in which this system would handle passengers in the elevators, as proposed (Exh. "S").

Alma J. Janke, managing engineer at the Medical Arts Building, stated that he became acquainted with Roy C. Smith of defendant company (R. 444) when Smith would drop into the Medical Arts Building with Connole. It was then contemplated that the elevators would be modernized and the job was discussed (R. 445). Mr. Connole suggested that Janke go to New York and Louisville, Kentucky to see defendant's synchron control equipment. Later, following his trip, Janke stated the equipment was installed under Mr. Connole's supervision (R. 417).

At the same time the Murphy Elevator Company was also quoting Kimball on the price of the material it would furnish (Exh. "T" and "U", R. 289).

Upon receipt of the data from the Elevator Supplies

Company and the incorporation of all estimates the plaintiff made its proposal, June 28, 1947, to the Medical Arts Building for the modernization of two elevators and the supply of one new and complete machine (Exh. "V", R. 290). Plaintiff secured the job, supervised the completion of the installation and Kimball threshold name plates were installed upon the cabs (Exh. "W", R. 291).

Later Mr. Connole and Mr. Roy C. Smith brought Jerry Smith of the Hotel Utah over to the Medical Arts Building to see the job in operation (R. 449). Janke stated that there had been some discussions between him, Mr. Connole and Mr. Roy C. Smith of the defendant that he would be employed in installing equipment at the hotel if Connole got the Utah Hotel contract (R. 451).

Some technical electrical engineering was required whereupon Roy C. Smith of the defendant corporation advised Kimball to contact Charles M. Henker of the Pacific Elevator and Equipment Company of San Francisco, California.* He was engaged by Kimball for final tuning of the control systems on the Medical Arts (Exh. "X", R. 293).

Kimball Elevator name plates were on the cabs at the Medical Arts Building before modernization and also afterwards.

While the job at the Medical Arts Building was under consideration and negotiation and the actual letting of the contract and work was accomplished, there were many other jobs under consideration which required the joint attention and cooperation of the parties.

On October 2, 1947, plaintiff received proposals from

the Murphy Elevator pertaining to the Belvedere Apartments, Salt Lake City, Utah, which included Elevator Supplies Company door operator, cab door hangers, hatch door hangers, hatch doors, signal equipment, indicator lanterns, upper flow flash light annunciator. The bid to the Belvedere Apartments management was made by Kimball (Exh. "Z", R. 300).

The Utah Childrens Hospital or "Polio Hospital" at the University of Utah was engineered, estimated and bid upon in the same fashion. Kimball forwarded specifications to both Murphy Elevator Company and the Elevator Supplies Company. For this job the Kimball Elevator Company included in its bid to the State the use of the Elevator Supplies Company signal system, referred to as "directional collective control," and also car position indicators and door operators. At no time did the plaintiff company receive or ask for quotations from any other company on similar equipment (Exh. AA, R. 302).

Plaintiff and defendant carried on correspondence relative to elevators to be installed or modernized for the Mountain Fuel Supply Company at Salt Lake City. As of September 15, 1948 plaintiff submitted a bid on the project in which plaintiff specified and included, were it a successful bidder, automatic "directional collective control" with and without attendant, and variable voltage control with automatic two-way leveling to be furnished on an installed basis by the defendant company (Exh. "BB", R. 305).

The parties contacted each other concerning an elevator project known as the Continental State Bank of

Boise, Idaho, and on September 2, 1948, the defendant company furnished the plaintiff a proposal covering synchron control, with "cuts" or illustrations and photographs of the material and an estimate sheet which set forth such work as would be done by the Murphy Elevator Company (Exh. "CC", R. 306).

Later the parties worked out an alternate proposal on the Boise job and plaintiff bid to install a synchron control unit and an L. D. M. operator with safety-edge for the doors, door arms, interlocks and hangers,—all to be furnished by defendants (Exh. "DD", R. 307).

The Idaho State Hospital, Blackfoot, Idaho, came up for bid. Plaintiff secured specifications and forwarded copies to the Murphy Elevator Company and to the defendant. Plaintiff thereafter included collective selective control as manufactured by the Elevator Supplies Company in its bid (Exh. "EE", R. 509).

The parties also attempted to secure the contract on the Idaho State Hospital at Pocatello. This was a complete new elevator with variable voltage selective control, as was always done, Kimball forwarded the specifications on this project to the Elevator Supplies Company and the Murphy Elevator Company. Murphy Elevator and defendant submitted cost quotations to Kimball setting forth the number of erection hours which would be required at the job site (Exh. "FF", R. 311). Cuts furnished by Murphy Elevator Company reflected the Elevator Supplies equipment to be used. These cuts were handed by Kimball to the architects of the project (Exh. "GG", R. 312).

The cooperation of both companies on the elevator construction job at the new Shriner's Hospital, Salt Lake City is shown by the exhibit "HH" (R. 313), wherein Mr. Dan W. Connoles on December 18, 1947 addressed a letter on behalf of plaintiff to Elevator Supplies Company, Inc., at San Francisco, California, enclosing specifications on the job. Defendant in turn communicated with the Murphy Company, with a copy to plaintiff, proposing to furnish and install collective selective control, electric door operators and signals. Upon receipt of the overall information Kimball bid the job to the general contractors on the project (R. 313-314).

Prior to the submission of the foregoing mentioned bid, (at the request of Roy Smith, District Manager of the defendant company), on or about December 21, 1948, the W. S. Tyler Company and the Dahlstrom Company quoted Kimball on the doors and cabs (Exh. "II", R. 314).

On October 22, 1946, the plaintiff company secured a contract for the installation of signal equipment and door closers, at the Walker Bank Building, Salt Lake City, on four passenger elevators and issued an order thereon to the Elevator Supplies Company (R. 354). Thereafter, the Walker Bank Building decided to completely modernize the elevators and entered into a cancellation agreement (Exh. "FFF") with Kimball. Plaintiff protected the defendant on the job by insisting that as a condition to the cancellation *the defendant be awarded* the supply of electrical power door operators (R. 356). The contract for modernization was later awarded in part to Kimball Elevator and in part to Otis

Elevator Company and Elevator Supplies furnished the door operators.

Roy C. Smith also substantiated Connole in canceling with Walker Bank. Kimball made the arrangement and requirement that Otis would use Elevator Supplies equipment (R. 909).

Upon receipt from the architects of specifications for elevators in the Ben Albert Apartments to be constructed at Salt Lake City, the Kimball Elevator Company forwarded copies to Elevator Supplies Inc. and to the Murphy Elevator Company, whereupon quotations were returned dated August 30, 1949, including directional collective control and L. D. M. Door operators manufactured by the defendant corporation. (Exh. "JJ", R. 316-317) (Admitted R. 334).

The manager of the defendant company for this area, Roy Casper Smith, would in many instances accompany Mr. Connole of Kimball to the job site and together confer with the management (R. 318).

Another typical project worked upon by the parties was the Latter Day Saints Primary Hospital at Salt Lake City. November 7, 1949, the defendant quoted to plaintiff on installation of directional collective control. Cuts of this equipment were furnished plaintiff to be shown the architects.

So that Elevator Supplies and Murphy would not duplicate the work, they tell Kimball Company:

"We have included an extra copy of our proposal in case you want to send this to Murphy so that they can check to see there is no duplication" (Exh. "KK", R. 320).

Kimball Elevator Company thereafter submitted a bid specifically including Elevator Supplies equipment in its proposal. Kimball did not receive or ask for quotations on similar equipment from any other company (R. 321), and as was customary, at the request of Roy C. Smith of the Elevator Supplies, the Tyler Cab Company and the Dahlstrom Company each submitted quotations on cabs for the L. D. S. Primary Hospital from district offices in San Francisco to the plaintiff company at Salt Lake City (Exh. "LL", R. 322).

The development of the Medical Center at the University of Utah commenced with the Cancer Research Building and the plaintiff and defendant companies were interested in the elevators (R. 322). Plaintiff secured specifications and sent copies thereof to defendant at San Francisco. Murphy Elevator Company quoted on its portion of the job, and the Dahlstrom and the Tyler Cab Companies at the request of Roy C. Smith, district manager of the defendant company, submitted a bid to Kimball on the cabs (Exh. "MM", December 12, 1949, R. 323). The plaintiff placed a bid which included and specified the directional collective equipment manufactured by the defendant corporation. Plaintiff did not seek nor receive proposals on similar systems from any other company or source.

The Memorial Building erected by Daughters of Utah Pioneers at Salt Lake City was considered by the parties and on May 31, 1949, the Elevator Supplies Company submitted its proposals on the electric door operators and sheave hangers for the hydraulic passenger elevator Kimball proposed to erect (Exh. "NN", R. 325).

On June 5, 1947, plaintiff also bid on the Price Hotel at Price, Utah, specifying defendant's directional collective relay system and Murphy Elevator Company's controls (Exh. "K", R. 277). The construction of the foundation had been completed and then the work stopped. Interest was revived and again the companies, appellant and respondent, corresponded efforts to secure the job. As shown by Exhibit "OO" (R. 326), defendant and Murphy Elevator equipment was designed to propose and obtain a complete new elevator.

"Cuts" or illustrative plates of the equipment of Murphy Company with defendant's material in place were furnished for display and for use in making quotations to customers (Exh. "PP", R. 328).

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